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Playmakers Theatre
Cameron Avenue
Chapel Hill, North Carolina

The University of North Carolina
at Chapel Hill, North Carolina
(0ffice of the University Enginser)
Scale: 1%/L,00 feet

June, 1968
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The National Survey of Historic Sites and Buildings

Playmakers Theatre (Smith Hall), University of North Carolina,
Cameron Avenue, Chapel Hill, North Carolina

Playmakers Theatre (Smith Hall) is of national architectural significance
as a small but monumental essay in a personalized Greesk Revival style hy Alexander
Jackson Davis. Davis's association with the University of North Carolina extended
over nearly a decade and played a primary role in shaping the young campus; the
impact of his work is still evident in the composition of the central cawmpus.

Previous construction on the campus had included Old Fast and Old West, South
Bullding, Person Hall, and Gerrard Hall, all rather plain, functional buildings.
The presidency of David Swain inaugurated a period of campus development and
improvement. A. J. Davis had been associated during the 1830s with the building of
the State Capitol in Raleigh, and in 1843, the same year he terminated his association
with Town, he was engaged to enlarge the 0ld East and Old West buildings; also
included in his duties as supervising architect was 'the preparation of comprehensive
plans for the campus." As Talbot Hamlin wrote, "A. J. Davis of New York studied
several of the buildings, altered them, and built a new library building in an effort
to weld the whole group into an impressive and monumental stheme.” He designed a
portico for the rather plain Gerrard Hall and enlarged and embellished 0ld East and
0ld West; he also worked closely with President Swain in evolving a scheme of landscaps
architecture to enhance the campus.

Most important, however, was Davis's work on the one-story bullding to accommodate
a library and to serve the two Literary Socleties that played a vital role in campus
life. Davis was engaged for the work iun 1849 and, as historian Archibald Henderson
noted, "The documentary evidence makes it abundantly clear that careful study and
analysis of the various problems invelved, affecting both bulldings and grounds, were
made by the architect in comsultation with Swain, Battle, and the Trustees,"
Preliminary drawings were submitted in the autumn of 1849, and a May 31, 1830, letter
from Davis to Swain reports:

I was obliged to redraw the whole, but the result has been to
improve the plan, so as to make it such as would be creditable
to any University, as a specimen of Classical taste, its
general character, and proportions, whataveL defects there may
be in the details, or execution.

A post-script states

The two capitals to the columns of your Hall I wish to have
carved here with foliage of Maise, wheat and tobacco; and
the shaft should be reeded, with or without a base as.l
shall determine here after.

In these capitals, wrote Talbot Hamlin, "native corn and tobacco replace the Roman
acanthus leaves with even more skill than that with which Latrobe had made a simil
experiment in the United States Capitol nearly forty years bafore."
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(Continuation Sheet)

Playmakers Theatre (Sﬁith Hall), University of North Carolina, Cameron Avenue,
Chapel Hill, North Carolina

The structure is a simple temple of stuccoed brick, with bays of sides and
rear separated by antae carrying an entablature with bracketed cornice. The
prostyle tetrastyle portico features fluted columns with the naturalistic capitals
beautifully modeled. The interior has been altered somewhat to serve a succession
of purposes, but the important elements survive. The wall treatment features
pilasters separating the bays and carrying a simple entablature. Especially interesting
are the plastered exposed ceiling trusses sketched and explained by Davis in a
March 4, 1850, letter as being ''the cheapest mode of breaking up the flat surface of
the ceiling and . . . more in the pure Greek style than the arch." The Playmakers
Theatre, a small temple-form building of excellent proportions accented by rich and
inventive detail, is of national architectural significance as a work of Alexander
Jackson Davis. It was the product not of a published drawing, but of lengthy and
well-documented individualized attention to every detail of an evolving design--
the culmination of Davis's vital role in the architectural development of the

University of North Carolina.
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